
     

Agenda Regular Meeting 01.20.2026.docx 

 

 
 

Agenda 
Norvell Township Board of Trustees Meeting 

Tuesday, January 20, 2026, 5:00 pm 
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Additions to Agenda 

4. Approval of Agenda 

5. Public Comment – Limit to 3 minutes 

6. Approval of Minutes for the December 15, 2025, Regular Meeting and January 5, 2026 

Special Meeting 

7. Consent Agenda: Reports from; Clerk, Treasurer, Building Department, Fire Departments, 

Assessor, Planning Commission, Sewer, Zoning Enforcement 

8. Other Reports 

a. County Commissioner’s Report 

9. Pay Bills 

10. Unfinished Business: 

a.  

11. New Business: 

a. Resolution 2026-01 – Support for 800 MHz Committee Findings 

b. Hiring of Pest Control Service 

c. Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment 

12. Public/Board Comment – Limit to 3 minutes 

13. Adjournment 

  



     

Agenda Regular Meeting 01.20.2026.docx 

NORVELL TOWNSHIP 

Public Comment Policy 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

As required by PA 276 of 1976, The Open Meetings Act, there shall be a minimum of one (1) Public 

Comment period at any Open Meeting of Norvell Township government. Any member of the public 

wishing to address the public body will limit their comments to one (1) three (3) minute period during each 

period of Public Comment so that all members of the public wishing to address that body may have an 

opportunity to be heard. In cases where more than 30 members of the public are present at a meeting and 

wish to provide public comment, the Township Board limits the length of public comment made by an 

individual to two (2) minutes in duration during each period of Public Comment. The Chair, at their 

discretion, may extend that period. A member of the public not using the full three (3) minutes allotted, 

may not cede any unused time to another speaker. In the event that a group of more than three (3) 

persons supporting or opposing the same position desires to be heard, in the interest of time, a 

spokesperson may be designated to express the group’s concern and the spokesperson may be allotted up 

to ten (10) minutes to speak. 

MANNER OF ADDRESSING THE BOARD/COMMISSION 

Upon recognition by the meeting Chair, each person addressing the Board/Commission is asked (but not 

required) to stand and give his/her name and address in an audible tone of voice for the record. All 

comments are to be addressed to the meeting Chair. No person other than members of the 

Board/Commission and the person recognized shall be permitted to enter into any discussion, either 

directly or through the members of the Board/Commission. No question shall be asked of the 

Board/Commission members except through the meeting Chair.  

BREACHING THE PEACE 

Any person who breaches the peace may be requested to leave. Breaching the peace includes repeatedly 

speaking without being recognized, threatening harm to any person or property, or otherwise disrupting 

the orderly proceeding of the meeting.  If an individual who is breaching the peace refuses to leave, law 

enforcement will be called to remove the subject. 

RECORDING OF TOWNSHIP MEETINGS 

Any person shall have the right to record (either audio or video), broadcast or take pictures of the 

proceedings of an Open Meeting but shall not utilize the electric outlets of the Township without prior 

permission of the Township Clerk. Any recording device and picture taking device shall be kept a minimum 

of ten (10) feet from any Board member and may not be placed behind them. Said devices shall not be 

placed so as to impede the vision of other members of the public. All cords related to those activities are 

to be kept in a secure manner so as not to cause a trip/fall hazard. 

Adopted 11/15/2023 



 

 

NORVELL TOWNSHIP 
300 Mill Rd. 

Brooklyn, Michigan 49230 

(517)-536-4370 

Fax (517)-536-0110 

 

Regular Meeting- 12/15/2025 

 

Present: William Sutherland, Supervisor; Sharon Pero, Clerk; Andrew Haystead, Trustee; Paul 

Francis, Trustee; Norvell Township, Jackson County 

Excused: Treasurer Sauers 

 

The Regular Meeting of the Norvell Township Board was called to order by Supervisor Bill 

Sutherland at 6:00 p.m. followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

A motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland, seconded by Trustee Haystead to approve the 

agenda as presented for November17, 2025, board meeting.  Motion carried.   

 

PUBLIC COMMENT  

Five people spoke about their concern for Watkins Lake State Park possibly being impacted from 

the Levy mining.  Two of the five that spoke were Norvell residents.   

 

MINUTES 

A motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland, seconded by Trustee Haystead to approve the 

minutes as presented of November 17, 2025, regular meeting and December 1, 2025, special 

meeting.  Motion carried.   

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

Supervisor Sutherland made comment.  Motion made by Clerk Pero, seconded by Trustee 

Haystead to approve the Consent Agenda.  Motion carried.   

 

OTHER REPORTS 

County Commissioner’s Report 

The County Commissioner was not available to be present at the meeting.  Walz provided a written 

report to the board.   

Audit Report 

Auditor Scott McClane gave a summary of the annual audit report for fiscal year ending 6/30/25.  

 

PAY BILLS  

A motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland, seconded by Trustee Francis to approve payment 

of $34,056.31 paid bills, $16,149.97 unpaid bills, and $19,976.90 payroll for a total of $70,183.18.  

Motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: Ayes - Supervisor Sutherland, Clerk Pero, Trustee 

Francis, and Trustee Haystead.  Nays -None.  Excused - Treasurer Sauers. 

 

 



 

 

Page 2 

12/15/2025  

Norvell Township Board Meeting 

 

NEW BUSINESS 

Joint Meeting – Board of Trustees, Planning Commission, ZBA 

The next joint meeting is planned for Tuesday, January 20, 2026, at 6:00 p.m.  The terms of  Bob 

Frontiera and Geoffrey Cripe (currently on the Planning Commission)  are to expire on December 

31, 2025.  Supervisor Sutherland spoke to approve re-appointments for a new three-year term for 

both Frontiera and Cripe starting January 1, 2026, through December 31, 2028.  A motion was 

made by Supervisor Sutherland, seconded by Trustee Haystead to approve the re-appointment of 

Bob Frontiera and Geoffrey Cripe to the Planning Commission; their new term starting January 

1, 2026, through December 31, 2028.  Motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: Ayes - 

Supervisor Sutherland, Clerk Pero, Trustee Francis, and Trustee Haystead.  Nays - None.  Excused 

- Treasurer Sauers.  

Resolution 2025-19 

Supervisor Sutherland spoke on formal dissolution of the Leoni Regional Utility Authority 

(LRUA).  A motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland and seconded by Clerk Pero to approve 

as presented the Resolution 2025-19 dissolution of the Leoni Regional Utility Authority (LRUA).  

Motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: Ayes - Supervisor Sutherland, Clerk Pero, Trustee 

Francis, and Trustee Haystead.  Nays - None.  Excused - Treasurer Sauers. 

Resolution 2025-17 

Supervisor Sutherland spoke on the need for approval by the Norvell Board of Trustees for this 

resolution that would affirm the Treasurer’s authority to collect Columbia School Summer Taxes 

and establish the fee structure for these services.  This service would provide for collection of 

Columbia Schools Summer Taxes on parcels located in Norvell Township.  The Fee Structure 

would be a charge of $1.50 per parcel.  A motion was made by Trustee Francis and seconded by 

Trustee Haystead to approve as presented the Resolution 2025-17 affirming the collection of 

Columbia Schools 2026 summer taxes. Motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: Ayes - 

Supervisor Sutherland, Clerk Pero, Trustee Francis, and Trustee Haystead.  Nays - None.  Excused 

- Treasurer Sauers.   

9 Days of Early Voting 

Clerk Pero spoke on Norvell Township seeking to partner with Grass Lake and Napoleon 

Townships because Jackson County is no longer conducting early voting for elections.  This 

partnership would help save election costs for all three townships.  The agreement has been 

presented to Township lawyers.  Norvell Township would like to see this agreement in place by 

2025 year end.  A motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland and seconded by Trustee Francis to 

approve the agreement made with Grass Lake and Napolean Townships. Motion carried on a roll 

call vote as follows: Ayes - Supervisor Sutherland, Clerk Pero, Trustee Francis, and Trustee 

Haystead.  Nays - None.  Excused - Treasurer Sauers.   

Funding for General Ledger Tutoring 

Clerk Pero addressed the board, explaining the need for additional training in the BS&A General 

Ledger program.  She requested funding to hire Mr. McCumber (a former Deputy Treasurer from 

Summit Township) to assist her with this training on recommendation of  township auditor (Scott 

McClane), who suggested Mr. McCumber as a good choice for this training.  A short discussion 

followed, with Trustee Francis suggesting the board approve the expenditure of up to $2,000.00  



 

 

Page 3 

12/15/2025  

Norvell Township Board Meeting 

 

 

for this training.  A motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland and seconded by Trustee Haystead  

to approve funding for up to $2,000.00 for Clerk to have training in GL and BS&A with Mr. 

McCumber. Motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: Ayes - Supervisor Sutherland, Clerk 

Pero, Trustee Francis, and Trustee Haystead.  Nays - None.  Excused - Treasurer Sauers.   

 

PUBLIC/BOARD COMMENT 

Clerk Pero expressed gratitude for the assistance of Auditor Scott McClane and Trustee Francis 

with the township audit.  Clerk Pero also thanked the concerned residents of Norvell Township for 

their coming out to  voice opinions on the aggregate mine.  Trustee Francis thanked everyone for 

coming to the meeting and wished all a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.   

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

A motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland, seconded by Trustee Haystead to adjourn the 

meeting at 6:43 p.m.  Motion carried.  

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,  

Sharon Pero, Township Clerk 

 

 

 

 



 

 

NORVELL TOWNSHIP 

300 Mill Road 

Brooklyn, MI 49230 

(517)-536-4370 

Fax (517)-536-0110 

 

Special Meeting-January 5, 2026 

 

Present: 

William Sutherland, Supervisor; Sharon Pero, Clerk: Andrew Haystead, Trustee, Paul Francis, 

Trustee, Deserre Sauers, Treasurer 

Also Present: Jay Truchan, Norvell Sheriff 

                       Veronica Stachurski, Attorney  

 

The Special Meeting of the Norvell Township Board was called to order by Supervisor Bill 

Sutherland at 9:00 A.M. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

A motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland, seconded by Trustee Haystead to approve the 

agenda as presented.  Motion carried. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

Sylvia Kay made public comment to strongly suggested that Norvell create a land preservation 

committee to help identify and protect what we value.   

 

NEW BUSINESS 

State of Police Department 

Supervisor Sutherland asked Administrative Police Chief, Jay Truchan, if he wanted to go into 

closed session.  Truchan stated yes, he would, along with his attorney.  

At 9:05 A.M. a motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland, seconded by Trustee Haystead to 

adjourn to closed session to consider the dismissal, suspension, or the disciplining of the Chief of 

Police, Jay Truchan.  Chief Truchan may rescind the closed session request at any time, in which 

case the matter at issue must be considered after the rescission only in open session.  Motion 

carried on a roll call vote as follows: Ayes - William Sutherland, Supervisor; Sharon Pero, Clerk; 

Andrew Haystead, Trustee; Paul Francis, Trustee; Deserre Sauers, Treasurer.  Nays - none. 

 

A motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland, seconded by Clerk Pero to adjourn to closed 

session for the purpose of discussing material exempt from disclosure by statute, specifically an 

attorney-client privileged written legal opinion with the township attorney. Motion carried on a 

roll call vote as follows: Ayes - William Sutherland, Supervisor; Sharon Pero, Clerk; Andrew 

Haystead, Trustee; Paul Francis, Trustee; Deserre Sauers, Treasurer.  Nays - none. 

 

At 10:03 A.M. a motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland, seconded by Treasurer Sauers to end 

closed session and to reopen the special board meeting.  Motion carried on a roll call vote as 

follows: Ayes William Sutherland, Supervisor; Sharon Pero, Clerk; Andrew Haystead, Trustee; 

Paul Francis, Trustee; Deserre Sauers, Treasurer.  Nays - none. 



 

 

Page 2  

January 5, 2026  

Norvell Township Board 

 

Supervisor Sutherland spoke to the issue and offered Attorney Stachurski an opportunity to speak.  

She offered to share public information to clarify the situation with Jay Truchan. 

 

Motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland and seconded by Treasurer Sauers to postpone the 

decision on the status of the police department until February 17th, 2026, Township Board 

Meeting.  Motion carried on a roll call vote as follows: Ayes - Sutherland, Supervisor; Sharon 

Pero, Clerk; Andrew Haystead, Trustee; Paul Francis, Trustee; Deserre Sauers, Treasurer.   

Nays - none.  

 

Public/Board Comment 

Supervisor Sutherland thanked Attorney Stachurski for attending the meeting.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

A motion was made by Supervisor Sutherland, seconded by Treasurer Sauers to adjourn the 

meeting at 10:08 A.M.  Motion carried. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

Sharon Pero      Lori Leonard 

Norvell Township Clerk    Recording Secretary/Deputy Clerk 

 

 

 

 





























































Permit # Address Category Applicant Name Date Issued Date Expires Amount Billed

Permit List 01/05/2026

$310.003080 VILLAGE LN 05/31/202612/02/2025Jerry's Manufactured Home InstallerMobile HomePB25-0100

$310.003062 HILLANLAKE DR 05/31/202612/02/2025Jerry's Manufactured Home InstallerMobile HomePB25-0101

$0.006001 NORVELL RD 06/13/202612/15/2025Johnson Sign CoSignPB25-0102

$180.002516 DARDY CT 06/14/202612/16/2025Ayers Basement SystemsStructural ReviewPB25-0103

Population: All Records

$800.004 Total Billed:Number of Permits:

Permit.Status  =  ISSUED AND
Permit.PermitType  =  Building AND
Permit.DateIssued  Between  12/1/2025 12:00:00 AM AND 
12/31/2025 11:59:59 PM



VLS - Update on Dissolution of LRUA 1.20.2026.docx  William Sutherland 

Memo 
Norvell Township 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Supervisor Bill Sutherland 

Date: January 20, 2026 

Re: Update on Dissolution of the LRUA 

 
The dissolution process for the Leoni Regional Utility Authority (LRUA) continues to move 

forward. All eight founding municipalities, along with the LRUA Board of Directors, have 

formally adopted the Resolution of Dissolution. 

Organizations with adopted Resolutions 

• The LRUA 

• Charter Township of Blackman 

• Charter Township of Columbia 

• Leoni Township 

• Village of Brooklyn 

• Village of Grass Lake 

• Charter Township of Grass Lake 

• Napoleon Township 

• Norvell Township 

State-required audits for 2023 and 2024 have been completed with no concerns identified.  

The next steps include completion of the 2025 audit and development of a schedule for the 

distribution of excess funds to the member municipalities. 

I will continue to keep the Board informed as this process advances. 



WLS Update 1.20.2026.docx  William Sutherland 

Memo 
Norvell Township 

To: Board of Trustees 

From: Supervisor 

Date: January 20, 2026 

Re: Wamplers Lake Sewer Update 

 

In December 2025, I requested that the Lenawee County Drain Commission 

convene a meeting of the municipalities that comprise the Wamplers Lake Sewer 

user communities to review the current status of the system and its budget, and 

to determine whether an adjustment to the user fee is warranted. These 

communities include: 

• Franklin Township 

• Cambridge Township 

• Norvell Township 

That meeting was not able to be scheduled before the end of last year. 

The Drain Commission has informed me that they will organize the meeting 

during the first quarter of 2026. Once the meeting is held, I will provide the Board 

with a full update. 

 

 



FINAL 

 

NORVELL TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

November 19th, MEETING MINUTES  

 
 

NO MEETING HELD THIS MONTH 
 
 
 

 



FINAL 

 

NORVELL TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

October 15th, MEETING MINUTES  

 
 

NO MEETING HELD THIS MONTH 
 
 
 

 



FINAL 

 

NORVELL TOWNSHIP PLANNING COMMISSION 

September 17th, 2025 MEETING MINUTES  

Meeting held in person at the Township Hall 
 
CALL TO ORDER 6:00 PM  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
ROLL CALL/VERIFICATION OF A QUORUM (Attendees are listed) 
Bob Frontiera – Chair, Monika Cook – Vice Chair, Russ Grimes– Secretary, Andrew 
Haystead– Township Board Rep, Amelia Kukla – Commissioner, Geoffrey Cripe – 
Commissioner, Scott Pacheco-Planner 
 
 Guest(s) –  S. Kay. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

Motion by R. Grimes approve current agenda. 2nd by M. Cook, No discussion. Motion 
Carried. 

 
APPROVAL of June 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

Motion by M. Cook to approve the regular meeting minutes, 2nd by A. Kukla. No 
discussion. Motion Carried. 

 
BOARD REPRESENTATIVE REPORT  

• A. Haystead presented a written report and additional verbal comments and 
explanations of items listed in report.  

•  
ZONING ADMINISTRATOR REPORT 

• Nothing to report. 
 
ZBA REPRESENTATIVE REPORT  

• Nothing to report. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 

• No committee reports at this time. 
 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
• None at this time. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
a. Zoning Map Amendment -Mr. Pacheco went through the current zoning map and 

discussed updates with the planning commissioners. He went through the Zoning 
Ordinance Update document that was provided for the meeting. The planning 



FINAL 

 

commission discussed the six options that were included in the report for zoning 
changes to meet the future land use map that was recently updated. Discussed moving 
the October meeting to Wednesday the 22nd as a special time. 

 
PUBLIC/COMMISSIONERS COMMENTS 

• S. Kay discussed land conservancy. 
 
ADJOURNMENT – 7:36 PM  

• Motion by R. Grimes to adjourn, 2nd by A. Haystead. No discussion. Motion Carried. 
  
Next meeting October 15th, 2025 (6:00pm in township hall) 
 

Respectfully submitted by R. Grimes, Secretary 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fire Department 

Monthly Report 

December. 2025 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Scott Damon 

Fire Chief 



Station Notes 
• Station #2 Complete 

 

• Station #1  

Personnel 

 
FF/Paramedic Wyatt Cole has requested a leave of Absents due to attending medical School in 

Akron Ohio  

 

Cadet Alexis Edwards has passed her National EMT Test  

 

Nattie Marks is doing well in both her FF Class & EMT Class  

 

Kane Wright continues to do well in his EMT Class  

 

Ethan Worden also is doing well in EMT Class  

 

Fire Alarm Program 
 

November Installs 

 

• 4 CO/Smoke Combination alarms 

• 0 Smoke alarms 

• 0 CO 

 

Training 
Online training  

Accident/Lose Report 

 
Equipment       at fault           Police Report                        Description 

 

 

 

Pos and Discussion 
 

 

New Application (Noah Saad) FF I-II Haz-Mat Application Attached  

 

 

Scott Damon  

Fire Chief 

See Attached No 

 

yes 

 

  S-10 



Cambridge Township Fire Department 

Monthly Fire Report 

 

Month December Year 2025 

 

Incident Type Cambridge Rome Norvell Special Events  
     

Structure Fire  1 Chimney   1  
Structure Fire Causing Death      

Vehicle Fire      
Vehicle Fire Causing Death     

Natural Vegetation Fire    1 Grain Dryer   
Illegal Burn     

Smoke Investigation      
     

Emergency Med. Incident  42 12 12  
Vehicle Accident with Injury’s 2    

Vehicle Accident-Causing Death     
Pedestrian vs. Vehicle      

Vehicle Accident with No-Injury’s   2   
Search For Lost Person      

Water & Ice-Related Rescue     
     

Odor Investigation    1  
Hazardous Spill      

Gas Leak (NG-LP)     
Carbon Monoxide Incident  2    

Carbon Monoxide Incident with Death      
Down Wires   2   

Storm Damage Hazards  3    
Arcing Wires      

Severe Weather Stand-by     
     

Assist To Police     
Animal Rescue     

Smoke or Odor Removal     
Dispatched & Cancelled En-Route  2 1   

False Alarm    1  
Assist to other Fire Departments      

     
Month Totals  52 17 16 0 
Year to Date  638 144 211 97 

Department Totals YTD 1090    
 

Scott Damon ____________________________________. Date ______________________________ 

Fire Chief  



1

Bill Sutherland

From: Margie Walz <MWalz@mijackson.org>
Sent: Monday, January 12, 2026 9:57 PM
To: Andy Grimes; supervisor@waterlootwpmi.gov; Bill Sutherland; John Lesinski; 

hlinnabary@leonitownship.com
Subject: [External Sender]: January updates

Good Evening Supervisors! 
 
WOW, Here we are already approaching the middle of January!  I don’t know about you, but Ɵme sure is flying by in my 
world. 
 
Highlights for January thus far. 
 
Human Services CommiƩee heard reports from the Medical Care Facility, Department on Aging, and Health Department.  
The Health Department presented the Update to Food Service License Fee Schedule to align with State Risk Categories.  
This was forwarded to the full board. Human Services currently has 3 board vacancies. 
 
General Government CommiƩee heard reports from Finance, Parks, and IT.  The Armory Farmers Market Project - Grow 
Jackson Lease was reviewed and forwarded to the full board.  A presentaƟon by Veregy was received and discussion 
around a change order ensued.  UlƟmately, this also was forwarded to the full board for consideraƟon. 
 
Public Safety and TransportaƟon heard reports from Region 2 and JCDOT.  The Animal Shelter discussed issues with the 
Veterinary shortage and presented an alternaƟve of Bissell Fix, an organizaƟon that supplies veterinary services.  A fee 
schedule was presented and discussed.  This was forwarded to the full board.  Public Safety has one board vacancy. 
 
The Parks board presented their annual report.  The report can be seen at   hƩps://www.co.jackson.mi.us/. Or find us on 
facebook.  I will leave a hard copy with each of you.  You can also find the Jackson County RecreaƟon Plan on the same 
website. 
 
I aƩended the MAFE convenƟon last weekend.  I found it to be extremely informaƟve and helpful.  We will be discussing 
what each aƩendee learned and potenƟal vendors we may be interested in the for the future. 
 
I have 9 more meeƟngs scheduled this month, including my townships.   
 
Have a great month! 
Margie 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Sent from my iPad 

















Resolution is support of 800 MHz workgroup 1.20.2026.docx William Sutherland 

Memo 

Norvell Township 
To: Board of Trustees 

From: Supervisor on behalf of the Jackson County Supervisor’s Association 

Date: January 20, 2026 

Re: Resolution 2026-01 – Support for the 800-Megahertz Radio Workgroup 

Purpose 

This memorandum requests that the Norvell Township Board of Trustees adopt a Resolution in 

support of the findings and recommendations of the Jackson County 800-Megahertz Radio 

Work Group. 

Background 

• The 911 call center is the backbone of emergency response in Jackson County, linking 

fire, police, and medical personnel through the county-wide 800-Megahertz radio 

system. 

• Current portable radios used by first responders are approaching 10 years of age, a 

point at which reliability declines and vendor support diminishes. 

• The Work Group, comprised of representatives from townships, city, fire, and police 

organizations, has completed a comprehensive evaluation of replacement needs and 

funding options. 

• The report recommends replacing 641 portable radios with Motorola APX N70 units to 

ensure seamless integration with Michigan’s statewide Motorola infrastructure and to 

maintain interoperability. 

Funding Options Considered 

• Separate organizational funding – leaves township and city need unmet, risks 

interoperability. 

• County property tax millage – fully funds replacement but competes with other millage 

proposals. 

• County 911 phone surcharge – fully funds replacement, spreads cost equitably across 

phone users and allows flexible annual adjustments. 

Recommendation 

The Work Group urges the Jackson County Board of Commissioners to place a funding proposal 

on the ballot at the earliest opportunity, allowing residents to decide how best to support the 

replacement of critical first responder radios. 

Requested Action 

The Norvell Township Board of Trustees is asked to adopt a Resolution formally supporting the 

Work Group’s report and recommendation. Such action will demonstrate township 

commitment to ensuring reliable emergency communication and protecting the safety of our 

residents. 



Norvell Township 

300 Mill Road 

Brooklyn, MI 49230 
(517)536-4370 

Fax: (517-536-0110 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2026-01 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWNSHIP BOARD OF NORVELL TOWNSHIP, JACKSON 

COUNTY, MICHIGAN, SUPPORTING THE RECOMMENDATION OF THE JACKSON 

COUNTY 800-MEGAHERTZ RADIO WORK GROUP 

WHEREAS, the Jackson County 800-Megahertz Radio Work Group has completed its 

investigation and evaluation regarding the replacement of aging 800 MHz portable radios used 

by first responders; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Work Group has issued its report titled “800-Megahertz Radio Work Group 

Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation”; and 

 

WHEREAS, reliable radio communication is essential for emergency first responder services 

throughout Jackson County. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township Board of Norvell Township, Jackson 

County, Michigan, hereby supports the recommendation of the Jackson County 800-Megahertz 

Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation regarding the purchase and 

implementation of 800 MHz portable radios as presented in the “800-Megahertz Radio Work 

Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation” report. 

 

AYES: 

NAYS:  

ABSENT:  

ABSTAIN:  
 

ADOPTED this 20th day of January, 2026. 

 

______________________________ 

Sharon Pero, Clerk 

 



             

800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation       

  F i n a l  R e p o r t  R e l e a s e d  D e c e m b e r  3 ,  2 0 2 5              P a g e  1 | 10 

 

800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, 
Evaluation and Recommendation    
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Immediate emergency first response by fire and police is the most important service local 
government provides to the people of Jackson County. When a fire, traffic accident, crime, 
medical emergency, natural disaster, possible school shooter, and any other situation 
anyone in Jackson County  considers an emergency occurs, a phone call to 911 provides 
immediate access to any and all first responder resources necessary to deal with the 
caller’s emergency. The 911 call center dispatches and coordinates first responders 
county-wide, ensuring that all resources needed to handle an emergency arrive on scene 
quickly. The 911 call center is linked to all first responder resources through a network of 
powerful 800-Megahertz radios that function any place, any time, and under any conditions 
throughout Jackson County.  These radios have to operate with 100% reliability when 
electricity is gone, cell towers are out, rain is pouring down, the temperature is below 0 or 
above 100 degrees. Rapid response and direct communication between individual first 
responders is critical. There is no time to replace a failed radio. Lost time can mean lost 
lives. The 800-Megahertz radios currently in use by Jackson County first responders are  
approaching 10 years old. At the 10-year mark, vendors normally stop selling a radio model 
but continue to sell repair parts for some period of years. As with any aging electronic 
device,  these radios will enter a period of declining reliability and more frequent repair. 

The Jackson County Supervisors Association, the Jackson County Fire Chiefs Association, 
and representatives from local police organizations held a joint meeting to discuss 
mounting concern over lack of a plan and funding for replacing our aging 800-Megahertz 
radios. The outcome of that meeting was formation of an 800-Megahertz radio work group 
comprised of representatives from township and city government, fire, and police. The 
work group was tasked with collecting relevant data, evaluating needs, identifying possible 
courses of action, examining the pros and cons of different courses of action, and making a 
recommendation. Its first  meeting was October 16. The work group chose to proceed at a 
rapid pace with weekly meetings, in order to complete their work as quickly as possible.  
This document is the completed work.  



             

800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation       

  F i n a l  R e p o r t  R e l e a s e d  D e c e m b e r  3 ,  2 0 2 5              P a g e  2 | 10 

 

CURRENT  800-MEGAHERTZ RADIO INVENTORY AND REPLACEMENT REQUIREMENTS  

Mobile and portable radio data was collected for all Jackson County fire and police 
organizations that are dispatched by Jackson County 911.  Mobile radios are those 
contained in vehicles. They are larger more powerful radios than portables, have 
significantly longer use lives, and are not yet in need of replacement. They will need 
replacement at some point in the not distant future but are not yet approaching 
obsolescence. The primary focus of this report is portable radios which are approaching a 
critical 10-year age mark. Details are shown in the spreadsheet table below. Total current 
inventory of police and fire portable radios in use is 635. The projected number of 
replacement radios needed is 641. The replacement number differs little from the current 
number in use, and would not be expected to, since all in-scope organizations are already 
equipped in the amounts necessary for normal operations. The small difference of 6 units 
is the combined net result of plus and minus impacts from planned operational changes in 
multiple organizations.   



             

800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation       

  F i n a l  R e p o r t  R e l e a s e d  D e c e m b e r  3 ,  2 0 2 5              P a g e  3 | 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 
 
 

Fire Departments Portable Radios Received in 
2017

Mobile Radios Received in 
2017

Additional Portable 
Radios Purchased

Additional Mobile 
Radios Purchased

Total/Current Number of Portable 
Radios 

Total/Current Number of Mobile 
Radios

Portable Radios Needed Mobile Radios Needed

Columbia Twp Fire 22 8 4 1 26 9 16 9
Concord Twp Fire 26 6 0 0 26 5 20 5
Grass Lake Fire 28 8 0 0 28 8 28 8
Hanover Twp Fire 20 7 0 0 20 7 20 7
Henrietta Twp Fire 26 9 0 0 26 9 26 9
Jackson City Fire 27 12 13 0 36 12 40 13
Liberty Twp Fire 24 7 0 0 24 7 24 7
Napoleon Twp Fire 16 9 13 4 29 13 29 13
Parma-Sandstone Fire 30 9 0 0 30 9 35 9
Rives-Tompkins Fire 23 10 0 0 23 10 23 10
Spring Arbor Fire 32 7 0 1 32 8 32 8
Springport Twp Fire 21 8 0 0 21 8 21 8
Summit Twp Fire 25 6 10 3 35 9 35 9
Pulaski Twp Fire 18 6 0 0 18 6 20 6
      374 120 369 121

Police Departments Portable Radios Received in 
2017

Mobile Radios Received in 
2017

Additional Portable 
Radios Purchased

Additional Mobile 
Radios Purchased

Total/Current Number of Portable 
Radios 

Total/Current Number of Mobile 
Radios

Portable Radios Needed Mobile Radios Needed

Blackman-Leoni DPS 43 30 10 5 45 28 46 30
Jackson City PD 63 22 3 2 66 24 71 24
Jackson Co. Sheriff 110 28 0 2 104 28 109 28
Spring Arbor PD 6 3 0 1 6 4 9 3
Columbia Twp PD 13 3 0 1 13 5 13 5
Springport Twp PD 8 3 0 0 8 3 8 3
Napoleon Twp PD 12 3 6 2 18 5 12 5
Norvell Twp PD 0 0 1 1 1 1 4 2
      261 98 272 100
                 

      635 218 641 221

Jackson County  - 800MHz Radio Inventory

Total Fire Radios

Total Police Radios

Total Police and Fire Radios



             

800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation       

  F i n a l  R e p o r t  R e l e a s e d  D e c e m b e r  3 ,  2 0 2 5              P a g e  4 | 10 

 

RADIO REPLACEMENT EQUIPMENT OPTIONS 

 

The 635 portable radios currently in use are all Motorola and the recommendation of the 
800-Megahertz radio work group is that the replacements be Motorola, specifically the APX 
N70 model. Three other vendors offer products with competitive pricing and similar 
functionality, but come with substantial drawbacks. Competing products are the Harris XL 
Series, Kenwood Viking VP, and Tait TP9600. Motorola is the standard in state level 
Michigan organizations as well as the overwhelming majority of Michigan county and local 
police and fire organizations. The Michigan Public Safety Communication System is 
Motorola including the communication towers and hardware the 911 call centers operate 
on. Motorola portable radios provide the most seamless and reliable integration with this 
Motorola infrastructure. Radios from the other vendors have very small installed bases in 
Michigan, are more vulnerable to multi-vendor technology integration issues, and tend to 
be less rugged or durable than Motorola.   Motorola performs particularly well when 
operated by gloved hands and works well with Self Contained Breathing Apparatus masks.   



             

800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation       

  F i n a l  R e p o r t  R e l e a s e d  D e c e m b e r  3 ,  2 0 2 5              P a g e  5 | 10 

 

RADIO REPLACEMENT FUNDING OPTIONS 

The cost to purchase 369 fire radios at the current list price is $3,320,442 and to purchase 
272 police radios at the current list price is $2,205,898. Three alternatives for funding 
portable radio replacement were examined and compared:  

A. Each Organization Separately Funds Its Own Needs 

Pros: 

1. County Commission deals only with funding for county organizations (e.g. 
Sheriff Department). 

2. County Commission decisions can be delayed longer. 
3. Voter approval is not required.  

Cons: 

1. Township and City radio needs are left unmet by County Commission. 
2. Townships and City are required to find their own separate sources of 

funds.  
3. State sales tax revenue sharing to local governments was reduced this 

year. 
4. Radio replacements will occur at different times rather than at one time. 
5. Financial constraints can delay radio replacement until radios begin 

failing. 
6. Financial constraints may divert purchases to lower quality and lower 

priced nonstandard equipment.   
7. Interoperability of organizations will be compromised if nonstandard 

equipment is purchased.  
8. Risk to Jackson County residents that emergency first response can 

become slower.     

 

B. County Property Tax Millage Proposal Offered to Voters 

Pros: 

1. It can fully fund all first responder radio needs. 
2. It can be done relatively soon. 



             

800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation       

  F i n a l  R e p o r t  R e l e a s e d  D e c e m b e r  3 ,  2 0 2 5              P a g e  6 | 10 

 

3. All first responder radios replaced at one time. 
4. Risk to Jackson County residents from obsolete radios eliminated.  

Cons: 

1. It requires County Commission action to put it on the ballot. 
2. It competes directly against and could cause defeat of other property tax 

millage proposals.  
3. It uses a funding mechanism based on property value rather than people 

served.  

 

C.   County 911 Phone Surcharge Proposal Offered to Voters 

Pros: 

1. It can fully fund all first responder radio needs. 
2. It can be done relatively soon. 
3. All first responder radios can be replaced at one time. 
4. Risk to Jackson County residents from obsolete radios is eliminated. 
5. The additional cost to phone users will be at most $1.50 per month. 
6. It will be seen by voters as much less costly than a property tax 

millage.  
7. All people who have access to 911 through their phones will share in 

the cost. 
8.  Basing the charge on phones that are used to access emergency first 

responder services will make sense to voters. 
9. The amount levied can be adjusted up or down yearly by the County 

Commission depending on need. 
10. The approved but unlevied amount can serve as a ‘virtual’ reserve 

fund for future needs.   

Cons: 

1. It requires County Commission action to put it on the ballot. 
2. It will likely appear on a ballot with property tax millages and could 

affect millage votes.  
3. An increase in the cost of anything is unpopular.  



             

800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation       

  F i n a l  R e p o r t  R e l e a s e d  D e c e m b e r  3 ,  2 0 2 5              P a g e  7 | 10 

 

CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION 

We trust the judgement of Jackson County residents. We believe voters should be 
presented with the facts and truth about 800-Megahertz radios in a form that makes sense 
to them, then asked to tell us with their vote how they want the matter handled. We ask the 
Jackson County Board of Commissioners to place 800-Megahertz funding on the ballot as 
soon as possible. The people of Jackson County deserve the best possible emergency first 
responder service. They should not have to experience deteriorating performance of aging 
radios before action is taken. 

 

  



             

800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation       

  F i n a l  R e p o r t  R e l e a s e d  D e c e m b e r  3 ,  2 0 2 5              P a g e  8 | 10 

 

Appendix A.  Miscellaneous Work Group Information and Work Session Results   

 

1. The work group will operate as a self-directed team and not have officers or formal 
meeting minutes. 

2. Decisions will be by consensus, not by formal vote.  

3. Dan Wymer will serve as work group documentarian, recording work session results as 
necessary. 

4. Dan Wymer will draft the final work group report, with all content subject to work group 
approval. 

5. Work group scope will be radios dispatched from 911. 

6. Organizations not dispatched from 911 also use 800 MHz radios (e.g. courts, buses, 
DPWs, jail).  

7. Only radios dispatched from the 911 call center can be funded by a 911 telephone 
charge. 

8. Data will be collected on all radios currently dispatched by 911. 

9. Data on radios not dispatched by 911 obtained as an incidental byproduct of dispatched 
radios data collection will be documented but no attempt will be made to collect all such 
data. 

10. Current 911 charge is $1.50 per phone number per month and generates a little over 
$2,400,000 annually. 

11. Increasing the charge to the maximum amount allowed, $3.00 per phone, would 
generate a little over $2,400,000 additional revenue per year. 

12. Jackson County currently contributes approximately $500,000 per year from the county 
general fund budget to 911 call center operations. 

13. The State of Michigan currently contributes approximately $350,000 per year to 911 call 
center operations. 

14. The Federal Government and the State of Michigan have mandated that all police radios 
be encrypted by 2027. 



             

800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation       

  F i n a l  R e p o r t  R e l e a s e d  D e c e m b e r  3 ,  2 0 2 5              P a g e  9 | 10 

 

15. The State of Michigan has not yet mandated fire radio encryption. The need for 
interoperability makes a mandate highly likely in the near future. Neighboring counties have 
already encrypted their fire radios. 

16. Model APX 6000 radios could be updated for encryption but obsolescence is a concern.  

17. New Motorola radio unit list price for police is $8,109.92 and fire is $8,998.49. Fire radio 
difference: need to work in gloved hands, be waterproof, connect to breathing apparatus 
masks and have a rubber boot for greater drop protection. 

18. The State of Michigan uses Motorola 6000 units. 

19. Interoperability among organizations, both local and state, is paramount and needs to 
be maintained. 

20. Interoperability and encryption are the two top priorities. 

21. Ongoing funding for ongoing replacement is necessary, not just one-time replacement 
funding. 

22. The State of Michigan has mandated a central dispatch system update by 2030 that will 
incur a one-time cost of approximately $500,000. 

23. Currently an $800,000 annual bond payment is made from call center operation funds, 
the final payment to be in 2031.  

24. An increase in the 911 surcharge requires approval by vote of the people. 

25. The County Commission can levy up to the voter approved 911 surcharge maximum or 
levy a lesser amount. The amount levied can be adjusted up or down each year so long as it 
remains no greater than the voter approved amount. 

26. If the County Commission levies an amount less than the voter approved 911 surcharge 
maximum, the unlevied amount can serve as a ‘virtual’ reserve of funds, providing flexibility 
to the County Commission for addressing future call center and communication 
equipment needs.  

  



             

800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation       

  F i n a l  R e p o r t  R e l e a s e d  D e c e m b e r  3 ,  2 0 2 5              P a g e  10 | 10 

 

 

Appendix B:  800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Team  

 

Chris Simpson – City of Jackson Police Chief 

Darin McIntosh – Blackman-Leoni Public Safety Director 

Tim McEldowney – Summit and Spring Arbor Townships Fire Chief 

Greg Bickford – Napoleon Township Fire Chief 

Mike Jester – Leoni Township Administrator 

Jonathan Greene – Jackson City Manager 

Dan Wymer – Napoleon Township Supervisor 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  



 

JACKSON COUNTY SUPERVISORS 
ASSOCIATION 

 

December 8, 2025 

 

On behalf of the Jackson County Supervisors Association, we are writing to 
express our full support for the recommendation of the Jackson County 800-
Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation and Recommendation, 
regarding the purchase and implementation of the 800 MHz portable radios.  

 

Reliable communication is the backbone of effective emergency response. 
Our firefighters, first responders, police officers and partner agencies depend 
on clear, interoperable radios systems to protect lives and property. The 
Jackson County 800-Megahertz Radio Work Group Investigation, Evaluation 
and Recommendation reflects a thoughtful evaluation of current needs and 
future demands, ensuring that Jackson County remains prepared for both 
everyday emergencies and large-scale incidents.  

 

We recognize that the purchase of these radios represents a significant 
investment. It is essential that funding be prioritized at the county level to 
ensure timely access, strengthening interoperability, and demonstrate a 
unified commitment to public safety.  

 

Respectfully,  

 

 

Jerry Adams  
Chair, Jackson County Supervisors Association  



Pest Control Memo V2 1.20.2026.docx  MB 
 

Memo 
Norvell Township 

To: Norvell Township Board of Trustees 

From: Supervisor 

Date: January 20, 2026  

Re: Reinstatement of Pest Control Services – Renegade Pest Control 

Background 

• Renegade Pest Control previously terminated service due to a dispute with 

a former board member. 

• That individual is no longer serving on the Board. 

• Township administration contacted Renegade to determine whether they 

would consider resuming service. 

• The company confirmed its willingness to return as the Township’s 

provider. 

Discussion 

• Renegade provided reliable and responsive service during its prior 

engagement with the Township. 

• Reinstating this vendor would restore continuity in pest control services. 

• The Township has an established working relationship with Renegade, 

which supports efficient service delivery. 

Recommendation 

• Approve reinstatement of pest control services with Renegade Pest 

Control. 

• Authorize the Supervisor to execute any necessary arrangements to resume 

service. 

 



 



 
   Phone: (517) 536-4370    
 

 
106 E. Commercial Drive 
Norvell, MI 49263 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To:           Township Board   

From:    Scott Pacheco, AICP: SP Urban Planning Services   

Date:       January 20, 2026    

Agenda  

Item:  Draft Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

Subject:  Planning Commission recommendation to amend the minimum lot size.  

 

HISTORY: 

In early 2024, Norvell Township approved an update to the Norvell Township Master Plan and 

on August 18, 2025, the Norvell Township Board approved an amendment to the Norvell 

Township Zoning Ordinance to implement the updated Master Plan and to reorganize and 

simplify the Township’s zoning regulations. 

Since the adoption of the Zoning Ordinance amendment in August, the Township Board has 

determined that additional revisions are necessary to more closely align the minimum lot size 

regulations within the Agricultural Zoning District (AG-1) with the standards as they were being 

implemented prior to the August 18, 2025, amendment and to further simplify the regulations. 

The suggested changes from the Township Board from the October 20, 2025 meeting included 

the following changes:  

1. Reduce the minimum lot size in the Agricultural zoning district to 1 acre for all 

properties; and  

2. Removal of the Rural Residential zoning district all together.  

The Planning Commission held a public hearing on December 17, 2025, on the proposed zoning 

text amendment that would reduce the minimum lot size in the AG zoning district to 1 acres and 

would illuminate the RR zoning district. One citizen spoke on the zoning text amendment but 

was not in favor or against the proposed amendment.  

During the Planning Commission discussion the commissioner brough up concerns that allowing 

the minimum lot size in the AG zoning district to be 1 acre would not be the best policy in regard 

to preserving the rural character or the community or preserving the existing farmlands, both of 

which where identified as top priorities for the Citizen of the Township during the 2024 Master 

Plan process. After reviewing the surrounding communities AG zoning minimum lot size 

regulations and to help address preserving the rural character and to preserve the existing farms 



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

January__, 2026 

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

Page 2 of 3 

 

the commission agreed that the minimum lot size in the AG district should not be reduced to less 

than 2 acres. They also believed that the RR zoning district should remain in the zoning 

ordinance. This would allow property owners with properties that have a Rural Residential 

Future Land Use Designation in the Master Plan to request a zoning map amendment if needed. 

If a future zoning map amendment is requested at that time the Township will be able to review 

the request and to determine if the proposed zoning change would be appropriate for the area and 

the community.  

The December 18, 2025 Planning Commission approved the following motion by a unanimous 

vote:  

 

The Planning Commission recommends that the Township Board approve the proposed Zoning 

Text Amendment 25-002 with the changes that the AG minimum lot size be amended to 2 acres 

instead of 1 acre and that the RR zoning district remain unchanged, because it will meet the 

required standards for zoning text amendment under section 3.3 Zoning Text and Map 

Amendment of the Norvell Township Zoning Ordinance as discussed at tonight’s 12/17/2025 

planning commission meeting, in the planning commission staff report and because the proposed 

amendment is compatible with the Township Master Plan and it simplifies and streamlines the 

Township regulations allowing the citizens of the township more opportunity to use their 

properties while continuing to protect the health, safety and welfare of the citizens of the 

Township. 

 

Attached to this report is the proposed zoning text amendment as recommended by the Planning 

Commission (Exhibit A), the December 17, 2025 Planning Commission staff report and exhibits 

which include the originally proposed zoning text amendments as originally submitted to the 

Planning Commission (Exhibit B).  

 

On December 23, 2025 the Township forwarded the proposed zoning amendment, the December 

17, 2025 planning commission staff report and draft meeting minutes to the Jackson County 

Planning Commission (JCPC). At the January 8, 2026 JCPC public meeting the JCPC 

recommended that the Township Board approve the proposed zoning text amendment. The JCPC 

January 8, 2026 letter recommending approval of the zoning text amendment, the January 8, 

2026 JCPC zoning report, the JCPC zoning amendment form and the January 8, 2026 JCPC 

meeting minutes are attached as Exhibit C. 

 

PROCESS:  

Action of the Township Board  

1. Upon receipt of recommendation from the Planning Commission and the Jackson County 

Planning Commission, the Township Board shall consider the proposed amendment. The 

Township Board may hold any additional hearings it deems necessary. Notice of a public hearing 

held by the Township Board shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

Township not more than 15 days nor less than five days before the hearing.  

 

2. If the Township Board deems any changes to the proposed amendment advisable, it may refer 

the same to the Planning Commission for a report within a time specified by the Township 

Board. After receiving the report, the Township Board will again consider the amendment. The 

Township Board may request a representative of the Planning Commission attend the hearing.  



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

January__, 2026 

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

Page 3 of 3 

 

 

3. The Township Board shall grant a hearing on the proposed amendment to a property owner 

who by certified mail addressed to the Township Clerk requests a hearing in accordance with 

Michigan law.  

 

4. Thereafter, the Township Board may adopt the amendment with or without changes by 

majority vote in accordance with Michigan law.   

 

5. No application for a rezoning which has been denied by the Township Board shall be 

resubmitted for a period of one year from the date of the last denial, except on grounds of newly 

discovered evidence or proof of changed conditions found upon inspection by the Township 

Board to be valid. 

  

D. Notice of Adoption  

1. Amendments adopted by the Township Board shall be filed with the Township Clerk and one 

notice of amendment adoption shall be published in a newspaper of general circulation in the 

Township within 15 days after adoption. The notice of amendment adoption shall contain the 

following information: either a summary of the regulatory effect of the amendment, including the 

geographic area affected, or the text of the amendment; the effective date of the amendment; and 

the time and place where a copy of the amendment may be purchased or inspected. 

 

EXHIBITS 

Exhibit A: Zoning Text Amendment 25-002 as recommended by the Township Planning 

Commission 

Exhibit B: December 17, 2025 Planning Commission Staff Report with Exhibits  

Exhibit C: Jackson County Planning Commission Recommendation  

 



 
   Phone: (517) 536-4370    
 

 
106 E. Commercial Drive 
Norvell, MI 49263 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

To:           Planning Commission  

From:    Scott Pacheco, AICP: SP Urban Planning Services   

Date:       December 17, 2025    

Agenda  

Item:  Draft Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

Subject:  Change the minimum Lot Size from 5 acres to 1 Acre in the Agricultural Zoning 

District (AG) and Remove Rural Residential (RR) Zoning  

HISTORY: 

In early 2024, Norvell Township approved an update to the Norvell Township Master Plan and 

on August 18, 2025, the Norvell Township Board approved an amendment to the Norvell 

Township Zoning Ordinance to implement the updated Master Plan and to reorganize and 

simplify the Township’s zoning regulations. 

Since the adoption of the Zoning Ordinance amendment in August, the Township Board has 

determined that additional revisions are necessary to more closely align the minimum lot size 

regulations within the Agricultural Zoning District (AG-1) with the standards as they were being 

implemented prior to the August 18, 2025, amendment and to further simplify the regulations. 

This includes the following proposed changes:  

1. Reduce the minimum lot size in the Agricultural zoning district to 1 acre for all 

properties; and  

2. Removal of the Rural Residential zoning district all together.  

 

ANALYSIS: 

 

AG Minimum Lot Size:  

The minimum lot size regulations for the AG district in 2025 approved zoning ordinance is 5 

acres for a property where sewer is not available and 1 acre for a property where sewer is 

available is proposed to be changed to a minimum lot size of 1 acre for all properties within the 

AG-1 zoning district. 

 

 

 



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

2 

 

Section  5.1    Regulations Table 

  

Zoning District 

Minimum Lot 

Size 

Minimum Yard 

Setback (feet) 

Maximum 

Lot 

Coverage 

Maximum 

Building 

Heights 

(feet) 

Lot 

Area 

Lot 

Width 

(feet) 

Front 
Side 

Min/Agg 
Rear  

Primary 

and 

Accessory 

Structures 

AG 

Agricultural 

Residential 

with 

Sewer 
1 acre 150 

50 20/40 

25 

20%110% 35 
without 

Sewer 
5 acres 200 50 

RR 

Rural Residential 
1 acre 150 50 20/40 25 20% 35 

RS-1 

Single-Family 

Suburban Residential 

20,000 

sf 
100 20 10/20 20 30% 35 

RS-2 

Single-Family 

Suburban Residential 2 

10,000 

sf 
80 15 8/16 10 25% 35 

RL-1 

Single-Family 

Lake Residential 

10,000 

sf 
80 15 10/20 20 30% 28 

RL-2 

Single-Family 

Lake Residential 2 

18,000 

sf 
120 20 10/20 25 25% 28 

RM-1 

Multiple-

Family 

Residential 

Single- 

and 

Two-

Family 

with 

Sewer 

15,000 

sf 

120 35 10/20 35 30% 35 

without 

Sewer 

25,000 

sf 

Multiple-Family 

See 

Section 

5.2 (D) 

MH-1 

Mobile Home Residential 

10,000 

sf 
80 20 10/20 25 25 25 

 
1 The Lot coverage should be increase based on the small size of the lots now allowed. If you have a 
one acre lot if the maximum lot coverage were 10% into would only allow 4358 square foot of lot 
coverage. Meaning if your house was a 2400 square foot ranch your patios, parking area and 
driveway could only include 1942 square foot of paved area. Increasing this maximum lot coverage 
to 20% will allow people that want to have longer paved driveway that opportunity without the need 
to request a variance.  



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

3 

 

Zoning District 

Minimum Lot 

Size 

Minimum Yard 

Setback (feet) 

Maximum 

Lot 

Coverage 

Maximum 

Building 

Heights 

(feet) 

Lot 

Area 

Lot 

Width 

(feet) 

Front 
Side 

Min/Agg 
Rear  

Primary 

and 

Accessory 

Structures 

C-1 

Local Commercial 
¾ acre 125 35 20/40 35 25% 30 

 

See discussion on pages 12-14 under items 1 regarding the reasoning for this proposed change.  

 

Removing references to Rural Residential (RR) zoning district:  

Reducing the minimum lot size of the AG zoning district to 1 acres eliminates most of the 

benefits of creating the RR zoning district as the intent of this district was two fold, one it was to 

allow a smaller allowed lot size than the AG zoning district with smaller setback regulations, and  

two restrict the uses allowed in the RR zoning district to uses that would be more compatible 

with Residential development.  If the minimum lot size of the AG zoning district was reduced to 

1 acre and the other mass and bulk regulations were also reduced to accommodate the new 1-acre 

minimum lot size as proposed in the Zoning Text Amendment address under the section above 

the first part of the intent to create an RR zoning district is no longer necessary.  

 

In regards to the uses in the 2025 Zoning Ordinance the following uses are allowed in the AG but 

not in the RR zoning district: Quarries and Mining Facilities, Airports, Radio and Television 

Stations, Hospitals and Other Emergency Medical Facilities, RV and Travel Trailor Parks, 

Feedlots, Entertainment Establishments/ Outdoor Commercial Ammusment Centers, 

Commercial Alternative Energy Facilities, Senior Retirement Homes/ Nursing Homes/ 

Retirement Communities, and Cemeteries. All other uses are identical in the AG and RR zoning 

districts.  

 

It does not appear to be the will to change the zoning district on existing properties within the 

Township. To reduce confusion and to simplify the Zoning Regulations within the Township it 

may be beneficial to eliminate the RR zoning district for the Township Zoning Ordinance. The 

RR zoning district is referred to in eight sections of the Township Zoning Ordinance. Those 

sections are shown below with the required changes to eliminate the reference to the Rural 

Residential Zoning District from the 2025 Zoning Ordinance.  

Section  2.19    Definitions “R” 

Residential Districts: The following zoning district are considered residential districts; 

agricultural residential district (AG), Rural Residential Zoning District (RR), Single-Family 

Suburban Residential District 1 (RS-1), Single-Family Suburban Residential District 2 (RS-2), 

Single-Family Lake Residential District 1 (RL-1), Single-Family Lake Residential District 2 

(RL-2),  Multiple-Family Residential District, (RM), and Mobile Home Residential District 

(MH) 



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

4 

 

Section  3.1    Establishment of Zoning Districts 

The Township of Norvell is hereby divided into the following zoning districts as shown on the 

Official Zoning Map, which together with all explanatory matter shown thereon, is hereby 

adopted by reference and declared to be a part of this Ordinance. 

AG District: Agricultural Residential District 

RR District: Rural Residential District 

RS-1 District: Single-Family Suburban Residential District 1 

RS-2 District: Single-Family Suburban Residential District 2 

RL-1 District: Single-Family Lake Residential District 1 

RL-2 District: Single-Family Lake Residential District 2 

RM District: Multiple-Family Residential District 

MH District: Mobile Home Residential District 

C-1 District: Local Commercial District  

C-2 District: General Commercial District  

I-1 District: Light Industrial District 

 

Section  4.1    Permitted and Conditional Use Tables 

A. Permitted and conditional uses for each district are set forth in the Permitted Use Tables in 

this Section of this Article. Unless otherwise stated, minimum area, height, and bulk 

regulations for each permitted or conditional use are set forth in the district regulations 

tables in Article 5, Section 5.1. 

B. Zoning Districts: AG=Agricultural Residential District, RR=Rural Residential District, 

RS-1= Single-Family Suburban Residential District 1, RS-2 =Single-Family Suburban 

Residential District 2, RL-= Single-Family Lake Residential District 1, RL-2= Single-

Family Lake Residential District 2, RM= Multiple-Family Residential District, MH= 

Manufactured Home Residential District, C-1= Local Commercial District 1, C-2=General 

Commercial District 2, and I= Light Industrial District 

C. Use: P=Permitted Use, C=Conditional Use, - =Prohibited Use. 

D. Residential Uses:  



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

5 

 

 

E. Agricultural/Open Space and Parks Uses: 

Residential Uses Zoning Districts  

Uses AG RR RS-1 RS-2 
RL-

1 

RL-

2 
RM MH C-1 C-2 I-1 

Additional 

Regs 

Single-Family 

Dwelling 
P P P P P P C C - - - 

Section 4.2 

(A) 

Two-Family 

Dwellings 
C C - - - - P - - - - 

Section 4.2 

(A) 

Multi Family 

Dwellings 
- - - - - - P - - - -  

Manufactured 

Housing Community 
- - - - - - C P - - - 

Section 4.3 

(A) 

State Licensed 

Residential 

Facilities, 

P P P P P P P - - - - Section 4.2 (B) 

Adult Foster Care 

Family Homes, 
P P P P P P P - - - - Section 4.2 (B) 

Adult Foster Care 

Small and Large 

Group Homes 

C C - - - - - - - - - Section 4.3 (B) 

Family Child Care 

Home 
P P P P P P P - - - - Section 4.2 (B) 

Group Child Care 

Home 
C C C C C C C - - - - Section 4.3 (C) 

Child Care Center, C C - - - - - - - - - 
Section 4.3 

(D) 

Short-Term Rental 

Units 
P P P P P P - - - - - Section 4.2 (C) 

Bed and Breakfast 

Rentals 
P P P P P P - - - - - 

Section 4.2 

(D) 

Agricultural/Open 

Space and Parks Use 
Zoning Districts  

Uses AG RR RS-1 RS-2 RL-1 RL-2 RM MH C-1 C-2 I-1 
Additional 

Regs 

General and 

Specialized Farming 
P P - - - - - - - - -  

Raising or Growing 

of Plants 
P P - - - - - - - - -  

Public and Private 

Conservation Areas 
P P - - - - - - - - -  

Public or Private 

Parks (Playgrounds 

) 

P P P P P P P P - - -  

             



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

6 

 

F. Commercial Uses: 



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

7 

 

Commercial Uses Zoning Districts  

Uses AG RR RS-1 RS-2 RL-1 RL-2 RM MH C-1 C-2 I-1 
Additional 

Regs 

Retail Stores - - - - - - - - P P -  

Food, Personal, and 

Other Service 

Businesses 

- - - - - - - - P P -  

Business, 

Professional and 

Medical Offices 

- - - - - - - - P P -  

Restaurants - - - - - - - - P P -  

Automobiles Sales - - - - - - - - - P -  

Small Equipment 

Repair 
- - - - - - - - - P -  

Entertainment and 

Recreational Service 

Businesses 

- - - - - - - - - P -  

Automobile Service 

Station/ Gas Stations 
- - - - - - - - C P - Section 4.3 (E) 

Quarrying and 

mining 
C - - - - - - - - - - Article 7 

Camp grounds C C - - - - - - - - - Section 4.3 (F) 

Public or Private 

Clubs (Country 

Club and Recreation 

Club) 

C C C C C C C - - - -  

Airport C - - - - - - - - - - Section 4.3 (F) 

Radio or television 

stations 
- - - - - - - - C C C  

Hospitals and Other 

Emergency Medical 

facilities 

C - - - - - - - C C C  

Golf course and Golf 

related facilities 
C C - - - C - - - - - 

Section 4.3 

(H) 

RV and Travel 

Trailer Parks 
C - - - - - - - - - - Section 4.3 (I) 

Feedlots C - - - - - - - - - - Section 4.3 (J) 

Landfills/ Junk yard - - - - - - - - - - C Section 4.3 (K) 

Funeral Parlors - - - - - - - - C C -  

Animal Hospitals 

and Clinics 
C C - - - - - - C C - Section 4.3 (L) 

Drive-through 

restaurants/ other 
- - - - - - - - C C - Section 4.3 (M) 

Marinas - - - - - - - - C C - Section 4.3 (N) 

Entertainment 

Establishments/ 

Outdoor 

Commercial 

Amusement Centers 

C - - - - - - - C C - Section 4.3 (O) 

Mini-Storage 

Facility 
- - - - - - - - C C - Section 4.3 (P) 

Outdoor 

Commercial Motor 

Home, Travel 

Trailer and Boat 

Storage 

- - - - - - - - C C C Section 4.3 (Q) 



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

8 

 

G. Industrial Uses: 

Industrial Uses Zoning District  

Use AG RR 
RS-

1 

RS-

2 

RL-

1 
RL-2 RM MH C-1 C-2 I-1 

Additional 

Regs 

Frozen Food 

Lockers/Ice and cold 

storage plants 

- - - - - - - - - - P  

Contractors 

Establishments 
- - - - - - - - - - P  

Building Material 

Storage and Sale 
- - - - - - - - - - P Section 4.2 (E)  

Packaging Plants - - - - - - - - - - P  

Warehousing/ 

Distribution Center/ 

Wholesale Sales 

- - - - - - - - - C P  

Asphalt Concrete 

Plants 
- - - - - - - - - - P Section 4.3 (V) 

Light Industrial 

Assembly Plant 
- - - - - - - - - - P  

Research and 

Testing Facilities 
- - - - - - - - - - P  

Manufacturing - - - - - - - - - - P  

Bus, Truck, Rail 

Terminals 
- - - - - - - - - - C  

 

H. Institutional Uses: 

Institutional Uses Zoning District  

Use AG RR RS-1 
RS-

2 
RL-1 

RL-

2 
RM MH C-1 C-2 I-1 

Additional 

Regs 

Essential service 

structures 
P P P P P P P P P P P  

Churches C C C C C C C C - - -  

Government 

buildings 
C C C C - - C C C C C  

Senior Retirement 

Home, Nursing 

Homes or Assisted 

Living Facility 

C - - - - - C - - - -  

Hospitals and 

Other Medical 

facilities 

C - - - - - - - C C C  

Cemeteries C - - - - - - - - - -  

K-12 Schools, 

Nurseries, 

preschools, 

C C - - - - - - C C - 

Section 4.3 

(W) 

 



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

9 

 

Institutional Uses Zoning District  

Use AG RR RS-1 
RS-

2 
RL-1 

RL-

2 
RM MH C-1 C-2 I-1 

Additional 

Regs 

Colleges and 

Universities 

I. Accessory Uses: 

Section  5.1    Regulations Table 

  

Zoning District 

Minimum Lot 

Size 

Minimum Yard 

Setback (feet) 

Maximum 

Lot 

Coverage 

Maximum 

Building 

Heights 

(feet) 

Lot 

Area 

Lot 

Width 

(feet) 

Front 
Side 

Min/Agg 
Rear  

Primary 

and 

Accessory 

Structures 

Accessory Use Zoning Districts  

Use AG RR RS-1 RS-2 RL-1 
RL-

2 
RM MH C-1 C-2 

I-

1 

Additional 

Regs 

Home Occupations P P P P P P P P - - - 
Section 4.2 

(F) 

Open-air display 

areas for sales of 

products in 

association with a 

permitted use 

C - - - - - - - C C -  

Limited Residential 

Incidental to 

Commercial Use 

- - - - - - - - C C - 
Section 4.3 

(X) 

Kennels P P - - - - - - - - - 
Section 4.2 

(G) 

Roadside stands P P P - - - - - - - - 
Section 4.2 

(H) 

Accessory Dwelling 

Units 
P P P P P P - - - - - Section 4.2 (I) 

Outdoor Storage 

Associated with a 

Commercial Use 

- - - - - - - - - C C 
Section 4.3 

(U) 

Private Alternative 

Energy Facilities 
P P P P P P P P P P P Article 8 



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

10 

 

Zoning District 

Minimum Lot 

Size 

Minimum Yard 

Setback (feet) 

Maximum 

Lot 

Coverage 

Maximum 

Building 

Heights 

(feet) 

Lot 

Area 

Lot 

Width 

(feet) 

Front 
Side 

Min/Agg 
Rear  

Primary 

and 

Accessory 

Structures 

AG 

Agricultural 

Residential 

with 

Sewer 
1 acre 150 

50 20/40 

25 

20%210% 35 
without 

Sewer 
5 acres 200 50 

RR 

Rural Residential 
1 acre 150 50 20/40 25 20% 35 

RS-1 

Single-Family 

Suburban Residential 

20,000 

sf 
100 20 10/20 20 30% 35 

RS-2 

Single-Family 

Suburban Residential 2 

10,000 

sf 
80 15 8/16 10 25% 35 

RL-1 

Single-Family 

Lake Residential 

10,000 

sf 
80 15 10/20 20 30% 28 

RL-2 

Single-Family 

Lake Residential 2 

18,000 

sf 
120 20 10/20 25 25% 28 

RM-1 

Multiple-

Family 

Residential 

Single- 

and 

Two-

Family 

with 

Sewer 

15,000 

sf 

120 35 10/20 35 30% 35 

without 

Sewer 

25,000 

sf 

Multiple-Family 

See 

Section 

5.2 (D) 

MH-1 

Mobile Home Residential 

10,000 

sf 
80 20 10/20 25 25 25 

C-1 

Local Commercial 
¾ acre 125 35 20/40 35 25% 30 

 
2 The Lot coverage should be increase based on the small size of the lots now allowed. If you have a 
one acre lot if the maximum lot coverage were 10% into would only allow 4358 square foot of lot 
coverage. Meaning if your house was a 2400 square foot ranch your patios, parking area and 
driveway could only include 1942 square foot of paved area. Increasing this maximum lot coverage 
to 20% will allow people that want to have longer paved driveway that opportunity without the need 
to request a variance.  



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

11 

 

Zoning District 

Minimum Lot 

Size 

Minimum Yard 

Setback (feet) 

Maximum 

Lot 

Coverage 

Maximum 

Building 

Heights 

(feet) 

Lot 

Area 

Lot 

Width 

(feet) 

Front 
Side 

Min/Agg 
Rear  

Primary 

and 

Accessory 

Structures 

C-2 

General Commercial 
¾ acre 125 35 24/40 35 30% 35 

I-1 

Light Industrial 
1 acre 200 

35 

 
30/60 35 30% 35 

Section  6.8    Keeping and Raising of Animals 

A. This section does not apply to operations conforming to the Right to Farm Act and the 

GAAMPs under MCL 286.471 et seq. The raising and keeping of household pets, including 

dogs, cats, fish, birds, hamsters and other animals generally regarded as household pets, is 

permitted in any residential zoning district. 

B. The keeping and raising of wild animals, as defined in this Ordinance, shall be prohibited 

in any residential zoning district. 

C. Keeping and raising of horses: 

1. Horses may be kept or housed on a non-commercial basis only in the Agricultural 

(AG) and Rural Residential (RR)Zoning District. A minimum lot size of Five (5) 

acres is required. 

2. The number of horses permitted shall be determined as follows: Three (3) horses for 

the first Five (5) acres and one (1) additional horse for each additional one (1) acre of 

land thereafter. 

3. All horses shall have stables or other permanent structures available of such design 

as to provide protection from the elements. Such stables shall comply with the 

regulations applicable to accessory structures. 

4. Areas in which the horses are kept shall be completely enclosed by a fence meeting 

the requirements of Section 6.7, Fences. Said fence shall be kept in repair so as to 

prevent the horses from exiting the fenced-in-area. 

D. Keeping of poultry that are not used for farm purposes are allowed as a permitted use, in 

the following single-family zoning districts (AG, RR, RS-1, and RS-2) with the following 

regulations: 

1. Poultry must be kept within a fenced area which shall meet the required setbacks for 

the zoning district in which the property is located including the setback from a water 

body.  

2. On parcels two acres or less, a maximum of eight poultry animals are permitted. 

3. On parcels greater than two acres, 16 poultry animals are permitted. For each 

additional one acre over two acres, 16 additional poultry animals or other fowl are 

permitted. 



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

12 

 

4. Roosters shall only be permitted on parcels greater than two acres. 

5. Poultry must be located within the required rear yard but cannot encroach into the 

required rear setback. 

6. Poultry must be kept and cared for under sanitary conditions; poultry shall not 

become excessively noisy, odorous, dangerous, or in any way disruptive to the 

character of the area in which they are kept, or otherwise become a public nuisance. 

E. Any structure used for the keeping of animals shall meet the required setback of the zoning 

district in which it is located.  

Section  10.3    Sign Regulations 

F. Signs Allowed in Residential Zoning Districts (AG, RR, RL, RS, RM, and MH districts)  

 

Section  11.2    Open Space Preservation Developments (Clustered Developments) 

A. Zoning districts: An open space preservation development shall be permitted within the 

AG RR, and RS-1 zoning districts, subject to the following requirements and standards. 

 

PROCESS:  

To process a Zoning Text Amendment (ZTA) the township shall follow the regulations under 

section 3.3 Zoning Text and Map Amendments of the Norvell Township Zoning Ordinance.  

 

This section allows ZTA to be initiated by the Township Board. The proposed Zoning Text 

Amendment 25-002 was initiated by the Township Board at the October 20, 2025 Township 

Board meeting.  

 

Once a ZTA is initiated is shall be referred to the Planning Commission for review and a 

recommendation.  The Planning Commission shall consider each proposal for amendment in 

terms of its own judgment on factors related to the individual proposal, the most likely effect on 

the community's physical development, and conformance with the Township Master Plan. 

 

In reviewing any amendment petition, the Planning Commission shall identify and evaluate all 

factors relevant to the application. If the petition involves an amendment to the text of the 

Ordinance such as the proposed ZTA, matters to be considered by the Planning Commission 

shall include, but need not be limited to, the following:  

1. Is the amendment petition supported by documentation, such as from the Zoning 

Board of Appeals, that the proposed amendment would minimize problems or 

conflicts with specific sections of the Ordinance?  

This proposed zoning text amendment was initiated by the Township Board in order to 

allow property owners within Norvell Township in the AG zoning district to be able to 

split their properties into one acre lots, which is the minimum lot size standards as they 

were being implemented prior to the August 18, 2025, zoning ordinance amendment.  

 

During the Planning Commission meetings prior to the August 18, 2025 Zoning 

Ordinance Approval, it was discussed that original schedule of regulations table (shown 



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

13 

 

below, Table 1) must have been created in error. Under the AG-1 zoning district, the chart 

indicated that residential properties not served by sewer required a minimum lot size of 1 

acre, while residential properties served by sewer required a minimum lot size of 5 acres 

(Roman numeral “V”). This arrangement was deemed illogical, as municipalities typically 

allow smaller lot sizes for properties served by sewer. Therefore, the Commission 

concluded that the 1-acre and 5-acre minimums were likely transposed in the original 

regulations. 

 

The 2025 changes were made in an attempt to correct the error and to simplify and clarify 

the existing code regulations. I have included both the 2025 Zoning Ordinance 

Regulations (Table 1) and the Prior Zoning Ordinance (Table 2) which was last amended 

in 12/8/2021. 

 

Sence this change was made in August of 2025 the Township Board has determined that 

the original intent and the implementation of the code prior to August of 2025 was to 

allow property owner within the AG-1 zoning district to split their properties into one acre 

lots as long as all other regulations of the zoning ordinance are met.  

 

Table 1: Original Schedule of Regulations Table prior to Aug 18, 2025 

 

 
 

Minimum lot size requirements are really only applicable to newly created sites as site that 

existed prior to the current code would be considered legal non-conforming lots and under 

n Section 15.3 Nonconforming Lots (see below)  

 

 

 



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

14 

 

Section 15.3 Nonconforming Lots  

Notwithstanding limitations imposed by other provisions of this Ordinance, any use, 

structure and customary accessory structures may be erected on any single lot of record 

in existence on or before the date of adoption or amendment of this Ordinance, where 

such use is an authorized “use permitted by right” in said District according to Article 4, 

even though such lot fails to meet the requirements for area, width, and/or frontage that 

are applicable in the District. However, the following provisions shall apply:  

A. All yard dimensions, setbacks and other requirements not involving area, width, 

and/or frontage, shall conform to the regulations for the District in which such lot 

is located unless a variance is obtained through approval of the Zoning Board of 

Appeals. 

2. Is the amendment petition supported by reference materials, planning and zoning 

publications, information gained at seminars or experiences of other communities to 

more effectively address certain zoning issues? 

The agricultural zoning districts minimum lot sizes al in the adjacent municipalities are as 

follows:  

a. Grass Lake Township: 2 acres  

b. Columbia Township: 1 acres  

c. Napoleon Township: 5 acres  

d. Manchester Township: 2 acres  

 

3. Is the amendment petition consistent with Michigan law? 

The proposed zoning text amendment is consistent with Michigan Law and will be 

reviewed by the Township Attorney prior to a decision by the Township Board.  

 

The proposed amendment to reduce the minimum lot size in the AG zoning district and to 

remove the RR zoning district from the Township Zoning Ordinance is compliance with the 

2024 Norvell Township Master Plan.  The Master Plan under Chapter 3 Future Land Use, in the 

Future Land Use Categories Table on Page 17 states that the Future Land Use Designation 

(FLUD) Rural Residential is compatible with both the AG zoning district and any proposed 

future RR zoning district proposed.  The intended use of the Agricultural FLUD is active 

agricultural lands and residential uses and Rural Residential is low density residential housing 

and agricultural uses compatible with residential uses. Both intended uses are very similar in 

nature.  

The Planning Commission should make a motion to either recommend or not recommend the 

proposed zoning text amendment to the Township Board.  

Following the hearing, the Planning Commission shall transmit a summary of comments 

received at the hearing to the Township Board, along with its recommended action on the 

petition. The Planning Commission shall also forward its recommended action on the petition to 

the Jackson County Planning Commission for advisory comments. 

Example Recommendation to Approve:  

The Planning Commission recommends that the Township Board approve the proposed Zoning 

Text Amendment 25-002 because it will meet the required standards for zoning text amendment 

under section 3.3 Zoning Text and Map Amendment of the Norvell Township Zoning Ordinance 



Norvell Township Planning & Zoning Department 

November 19, 2025  

2025 Norvell Township Zoning Text Amendment 25-002  

15 

 

as discussed at tonight’s 11/19/2025 planning commission meeting, in the planning commission 

staff report and because the proposed amendment is compatible with the Township Master Plan 

and it simplifies and streamlines the Township regulations allowing the citizens of the township 

more opportunity to use their properties while continuing to protect the health, safety and welfare 

of the citizens of the Township.  

 

EXHIBITS 

Exhibit A: Zoning Text Amendment 25-002 (redlined) 



 

NORVELL TOWNSHIP 

ORDINANCE NO. 2026 - 060 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE  

TO CHANGE THE MINIMUM LOT SIZE IN THE AG ZONING DISTRICT AND TO 

REMOVE THE RR ZONING DISTRICT  

The Township of Norvell ordains: 

SECTION 1: AMENDMENT TO THE NORVELL TOWNSHIP ZONING ORDINANCE 

This zoning text amendments will amend the Norvell Township Zoning Ordinance as detailed 

below:  

ARTICLE 5: SCHEDULE OF REGULATIONS 

Section  5.1    Regulations Table 

  

Zoning District 

Minimum Lot 
Size 

Minimum Yard 
Setback (feet) 

Maximu
m Lot 

Coverage 

Maximu
m 

Building 
Heights 

(feet) 

Lot 
Area 

Lot 
Widt

h 

(feet) 

Fron
t 

Side 

Min/Ag
g 

Rea
r 

 

Primary 
and 

Accessory 
Structures 

AG 

Agricultural 
Residential 

with 
Sewer 

12 
acres 

150 

50 20/40 

25 

1020% 35 
withou

t 
Sewer 

5 acres 200 50 

RR 

Rural Residential 

1 acre 150 50 20/40 25 20% 35 

RS-1 

Single-Family 

Suburban Residential 

20,000 
sf 

100 20 10/20 20 30% 35 



Exhibit A 
 

 2 

Zoning District 

Minimum Lot 
Size 

Minimum Yard 
Setback (feet) 

Maximu
m Lot 

Coverage 

Maximu
m 

Building 
Heights 

(feet) 

Lot 
Area 

Lot 
Widt

h 

(feet) 

Fron
t 

Side 

Min/Ag
g 

Rea
r 

 

Primary 
and 

Accessory 
Structures 

RS-2 

Single-Family 

Suburban Residential 2 

10,000 
sf 

80 15 8/16 10 25% 35 

RL-1 

Single-Family 

Lake Residential 

10,000 
sf 

80 15 10/20 20 30% 28 

RL-2 

Single-Family 

Lake Residential 2 

18,000 
sf 

120 20 10/20 25 25% 28 

RM-1 

Multiple-
Family 

Residentia
l 

Single
- and 
Two-

Family 

with 
Sewer 

15,000 
sf 

120 35 10/20 35 30% 35 

withou
t 

Sewer 

25,000 
sf 

Multiple-Family 

See 
Sectio
n 5.2 
(D) 

MH-1 

Mobile Home Residential 

10,000 
sf 

80 20 10/20 25 25 25 

C-1 

Local Commercial 

¾ acre 125 35 20/40 35 25% 30 

C-2 ¾ acre 125 35 24/40 35 30% 35 



Exhibit A 
 

 3 

Zoning District 

Minimum Lot 
Size 

Minimum Yard 
Setback (feet) 

Maximu
m Lot 

Coverage 

Maximu
m 

Building 
Heights 

(feet) 

Lot 
Area 

Lot 
Widt

h 

(feet) 

Fron
t 

Side 

Min/Ag
g 

Rea
r 

 

Primary 
and 

Accessory 
Structures 

General Commercial 

I-1 

Light Industrial 

1 acre 200 

35 

 

30/60 35 30% 35 

 

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY 

 

Should any section, clause or provision of this ordinance be declared unconstitutional, illegal or of 

no force and effect by a court of competent jurisdiction, then and in that event such portion thereof 

shall not be deemed to affect the validity of any other part or portion of this ordinance.   

 

 

SECTION 3.  EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

This Ordinance takes effect seven (7) days after the notice of adoption was publication as 

provided by law. 

 

 


	Agenda Item 4 - Agenda
	Agenda Item 6 - Minutes
	MINUTES 12-15-2025
	MINUTES - 1-5-26  Special meeting

	Agenda Item 7 - Consent
	Agenda Item 7 - Consent
	Clerk Report
	Building Permits December 2025
	VLS - Update on Dissolution of LRUA 1.20.2026
	WLS Update 1.20.2026
	Planning Commission Minutes November 2025 Final (No MEETING)
	Planning Commission Minutes October 2025 Final (No MEETING)
	Planning Commission Minutes September 2025 Final

	CFD December 2025 combined
	Dec. 25 Report Narritive
	December  25


	Agenda Item 8a - County Commissioners Report
	Agenda Item 9 - Pay Bills
	Agenda Item 11a - Resolution 2026-01 - Support for 800 MHz Committee Findings
	Resolution is support of 800 MHz workgroup 1.20.2026
	Resolution 2026-01 800 Megahirtz Recommendation
	Final Report Issued Dec 3 2025
	Letter of support 800 (002)

	Agenda Item 11b - Pest Control Service
	Pest Control Memo V2 1.20.2026
	Pest Control Quote 2

	Agenda Item 11c - Text Amendment Zoning Ordinance
	1_20_2026_TBSR_Zoning Text Amendment
	PCSR_Zoning Text Amendment_December 2025
	Recommended by the Norvell PC_ZTA 25-002


